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TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM: N. Robert Shields, City Attorney 
 Scott Russell, Chief of Police 
 
SUBJECT: Medical Marijuana Dispensaries 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
Receive the report.   
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
On August 14, 2013 the Governor signed HB 3460 (providing for medical 
marijuana dispensaries) into law.  The provisions of the law that authorize the 
Oregon Health Authority to register medical marijuana facilities under its 
administrative rules do not go into effect until March 1, 2014.  
 
HB 3460 will allow medical marijuana dispensaries to be sited under certain 
restrictions in commercial and agricultural zones and directs the Oregon Health 
Authority to develop rules to regulate such dispensaries.  The law provides little 
direction to local governments on how to effectively manage community 
expectations for safety, security, and livability with the opening of these 
dispensaries.  
 
Community concerns regarding such dispensaries in other states have included 
their proximity to other businesses and services that could be fundamentally at 
odds with the dispensaries including such things as; child care/playgrounds, 
religious facilities, drug/alcohol treatment centers, existing high drug/crime 
areas,  civic services, etc.  The statute only restricts their placement within 1,000 
feet of a school or another dispensary.   
 
Public safety concerns with dispensaries in other states have included the 
potential for, and actual occurrence of, armed robberies and assaults over 
drugs and money located at the dispensaries, illegal sales of drugs to non-
medical users, and extortion of dispensary owners/operators by criminal 
organizations.  HB 3460 has limited provisions requiring additional security 
provisions for dispensaries. 
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DISCUSSION: 
 
While we are unaware of any existing plans to site a medical marijuana 
dispensary in Woodburn at this time, we anticipate that there will be such efforts 
at numerous locations throughout the state after the law and administrative 
rules are in effect. 
 
To mitigate these issues, some Oregon communities have enacted, or are 
considering, local ordinances.  Medford has, in effect, banned medical 
marijuana dispensaries by taking the position that it will not issue business 
licenses to them because they are in violation of federal law.  Medford has 
already revoked the business licenses of several businesses that it said were 
dispensing marijuana.   
 
On November 5, 2013, the Legislative Counsel to the Oregon Legislature issued 
an opinion concluding that any local law (i.e., a city ordinance) that prevents or 
materially restricts medical marijuana facilities is preempted (i.e., overridden) by 
the Oregon state law: 
 

In light of the legislative history, we believe that a local law that 
prevents or materially restricts the operation of medical marijuana 
facilities would stand as an obstacle to the accomplishment and 
execution of the purposes and objectives of HB 3460 and would 
therefore be preempted. A local law that restricts medical 
marijuana facilities by imposing different criteria from criteria 
affirmatively established in HB 3460 would also conflict with the 
purposes and objectives of HB 3460 and therefore be preempted. 

 
While it is true that an opinion of Legislative Counsel is not legally binding on 
Oregon cities, it will certainly be cited by proponents of HB 3460 as compelling 
authority when local ordinances are challenged in court.  On the other hand, 
despite the Legislative Counsel’s opinion, the League of Oregon Cities continues 
to maintain that municipal authority exists to regulate in this area. 
 
The legal issues of whether any local ordinance would conflict with state law 
and whether HB 3460 conflicts with federal law places the City in a difficult 
position as we seek to protect the safety of our citizens.  We anticipate litigation 
over ordinances such as Medford's and will track the outcome in order to better 
advise the City Council. 
 
Most Oregon cities have not enacted any ordinances in regard to medical 
marijuana dispensaries and will be relying on the state statute and the 
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administrative rules adopted under it to regulate the dispensaries.  The Oregon 
Health Authority has a Medical Marijuana Dispensary Law Advisory Committee 
to assist it in drafting the new administrative rules.  Local public officials on this 
committee include the Lincoln County District Attorney, the Yamhill County 
Sheriff and the Corvallis Chief of Police.   
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
None from this informational report.   
 
Attachments: 
 
Exhibit A - HB 3460 
Exhibit B - Newspaper Articles 
Exhibit C - Legislative Counsel Opinion 
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